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Independent Auditor's Report 

To, 
The Members of 
Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion: 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Infinity.Com Financial Securities 
Limited ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a 
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereunder 
referred to as the "Financial Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to th·e explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair value in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 31, 2023 and its Profit, Total Comprehensive Income, Changes in Equity and its Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis of Opinion: 

We have conducted our Audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing ("SA"'s) specified under Section143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") 
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our Audit of the Financial Statements 
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the Audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis of our Audit on the Financial Statements. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon: 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, 
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, 
Corporate Governance and Shareholder's Information. 
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Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our Audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during our Audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements: 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of this Financial Statements that g·ive a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Financial Statements that give true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements: 

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's 
Report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not 
a guarantee that an Audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken based on these financial statements. 

As part of an Audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the Audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 

,,,;::;=~risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
~l's.Ass opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
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higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve ~ollu,sion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the Audit to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in 
the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
Auditor's Report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the Audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our Audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to be bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order") issued by the 
Central Governments in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure-A" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our Audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with Books of Accounts. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on March 
31, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors are 
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a Director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure-B". Our Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy 
and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 

g) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) 
of the Act and according to the information and explanations given to us, there was no 
remuneration paid by the Company to its Directors during the Current year. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, as amended, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts as such the question of commenting on any material foreseeable 
losses thereon does not arise. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief: 

a) No funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either ind_ividu_ally or in the 
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aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 
entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") · or • provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

c) Based on the Audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 
that has cause us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.: 121142W/W100122 

Nishit Dave 
Partner 
M. No.: 120073 
UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 
Mumbai, 30.05.2023 
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"Annexure-A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 

Requirements' Section of our Report to the Members of Infinity.Com Financial 
Securities Limited of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the Books of Accounts and records examined by us in the normal course of 
Audit, we state that: 

i. In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
(a) (A) The Company does not own any Property 

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details of Plant and Equipment and relevant details 
of right-to-use. 

(B) The Company does not own any Intangible Assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Plant and Equipment 
and right-of-use of assets so as to cover all assets once every three years 
which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Plant and 
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were as informed to us 
by the Management these assets were physically verified during the year and 
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) Since the Company does not own any Property, comment under Clause 3(i)(c) 
is not given. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Plant and Equipment during the year. 

(e) As informed to us, no proceedings have been initiated during the year or are 
pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended 
in 2016) and Rules made thereunder. 

ii. As informed to us: 
(a) the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the 

management. The intervals at which the inventories were verified are, in our 
opinion, reasonable in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory and no 
material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification. 

(b) the Company had not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 
crore, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, from Banks or Financial 

stitutions on the basis of security of Current Assts and hence reporting under 
lause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
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iii. As informed to us, the Company has not made any Investments in Companies, 
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships during the year. 

(a) (A) As informed to us, the Company has not granted unsecured loans, has not 
provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of 
loans, secured or unsecured, to Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associates. 
Accordingly, comment under Clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 

(8) Based on the Audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information 
and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans to parties: 

Particulars Amount (in Lakhs) 

Aggregate amount during the year - others 1.10 

Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet Date -
others 22.38 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the 
audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and 
conditions of the loans given are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of 
the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the 
repayments or receipt have been regular. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to use and on the basis of 
our examinations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company. there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in 
respect of loans given. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to use and on the basis of 
our examinations of the records of the Company, there is no loan given falling 
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loan given 
to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same party. 

(f) According to the information and explanation given to use and on the basis of 
our examinations of the records of the Company, the company has not given 
any loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period 
of repayment. 

iv. The Company has complied with the Provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and 
guarantees, and security provided, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted any Deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
~=~Deposits. Hence, comment under Clause 3(v) of the Order is n~t applicable. 
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vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central 
Government under Sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
the business activities carried out by the Company. Hence, comment under Clause 
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. • • • 

vii. In respect of Statutory dues: 
(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing 

undisputed Statutory dues, including Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of 
Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material Statutory 
dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods & Service Tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service 
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other 
material Statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2023 for a period of more 
than six months form the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information given to us there are no Statutory dues, including 
Goods & Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income 
Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added 
Tax, Cess and other material Statutory dues applicable to the Company 
outstanding on account of any dispute. 

viii. There are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loans or other borrowings 
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Hence reporting under Clause 
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or government or any government authority. 

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year, however there are 
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year and which were applied for 
the purposes for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds 
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not used during the year for long 
term purposes of the Company. 

(e) On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of the 
_,:::;::;=:::~ securities held in its subsidiaries. 

8 



x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting 
under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable. 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any prefer~ntia! allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or 
optionally) and hence reporting under Clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and not material fraud on the Company has been 
noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under Sub-Section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and 
upto the date of this Report. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year (and upto the date of this Report), while 
determining the nature, timing and extent of our Audit procedure. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under Clause (xii) of 
the Order is not applicable. • • 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the Related 
Parties and details of Related Party Transactions have been disclosed in the 
Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate Internal Audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the Internal Audit Report for the year under Audit, issued 
to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing 
and extent of our Audit procedure. 

xv. In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transaction with its Directors' or persons connected with its Directors, and hence 
provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be regulated under Section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(a), 
(b), (c) of the Order are not applicable. 

xvii. The Company has not incurred Cash losses during the Financial Year covered by 
out Audit and the immediately preceding Financial Year. 

xviii. During the year, the Statutory Auditor, Mis. J D Jhaveri & Associates having Firm 
Ref No.111850W has ceased to be an Auditor on account of expiry of term after 
completion of 5 years as Auditor. In our opinion no adverse issues, objections or 

ncerns have been raised by the outgoing Auditors. 
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xix. On the basis of the Financial Rations, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the Financial Statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention·, which causes us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the Audit Report 
indicating that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of the Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year 
for the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on 
the facts up to the date of the Audit Report and We neither give any guarantee not 
any assurance that all liabilities falling due with a period of one year from the 
Balance Sheet date, will ger discharged by the Company as and when they fall 
due. 

xx. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not 
fall under the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, accordingly, reporting under 
Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable for the year. 

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.: 121142W/W100122 

rt' 
Nishit Dave 
Partner 
M. No.: 120073 
UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 
Mumbai, 30.05.2023 
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 (f) under "Report on other Legal & Regulatory 

Requirements" section of our Report to the members of Infinity.Com Financial 
Securities Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of 
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Infinity.Com Financial 
Securities Limited (the "Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that dat~. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India (the "ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial. controls over 
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

• e that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
r our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that 

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control 
over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. 

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg. No.: 121142W/W100122 

Nishit Dave 
Partner 
M. No.: 120073 
UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 
Mumbai, 30.05.2023 
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Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 

• Profit before tax 

Add: Adjustement for 

• Depreciation and amortisation expenses 

• Loss • Scrap of Fixed Assets 

• Finance costs 

• Interest received 

• Changes in Other comprehensive Income 

Operating Profit I (Loss) before working capital changes 

• Changes In working capital: 

• Trade receivables 

• Other Current Assets 

• Trade Payable 

• Current Liability 

• Provisions 

Cash generated from operations 

Add: Direct Taxes 

Net cash flow from I (used In) operating activltles 

B. Cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities 

• Purchase Of Property , plant and equipment 

• (Purchase)/ Sale of Investments 

• Interest received 

Net cash flow from/ (used In) Investing activities 

C. Cash flow from I (used in) financing activities 

• Borrowings • Net of Repayment 

• Changes in Debt Security 

• Interest Paid 

Net cash flow from / (used In) financing activities 

(A) 

(8) 

(C) 

Net increase I (decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

• Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above comprises of the following 

Cash and cash equivalent as per Note No.3 

• Cash in hand 

• Balances with Banks (on current accounts) 

• Fixed Deposits with Bank 

Balance as per statement of cash flows 

Notes : 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

20.47 

10.15 

(19.68) 

2.36 

(924.82) 

62.58 

374.18 

32.87 

9.61 

(1 .22) 

. 

19.68 

(26.37) 

2.74 

(10.15) 

Rs. 

82.26 

13.30 

95.57 

(445.58) 

(350.02) 

4.20 

(345.81) 

18.46 

18.46 

(33.78) 

(33.78) 

(361.13) 

1,525.77 

1,164.64 

8.00 

794.46 

362.18 

1,164.64 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

21.21 

13.46 

(24.73) 

3.09 

152.63 

(40.39) 

358.08 

0.81 

{1.57) 

. 

24.73 

(22.28) 

2.48 

(13.46) 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Rs. 

70.44 

13.03 

83.47 

469.56 

553.03 

(1.15) 

551.88 

24.73 

24.73 

(33.26) 

(33.26) 

543.35 

982.42 

1,525.77 

4.98 

1,060.41 

460.38 

1,525.77 

1.The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows. 

As per Report of Even Date Attached 

For Jayesh Dadla & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg.No.: 121142W/W100122 

-~ •1,;~~~r11,.ASso0~ . 

r CHARTERED 111 ~ 
s t Dave (I) ACCOUNl MllS ;(! ·J 

Partner Ul ,-.. • .,.~ ~ 
Mem. No.: 120073 /\ * ~ * 
UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 A{~ 

Mumbai, 30.05.2023 

0 
';)L 
Ket n Gandhi 

Dir ctor 

DI : 00062092 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

-
Hemang Gandhi 

Director 

DIN: 00008770 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Balance Sheet 

As at 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

Assets 

- Financial Assets 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Bank Balance other than above 

Receivables 

Investments 

Other Financial Assets 

Total Financial Assets "A" 

- Non-Financial Assets 

Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangibles 

Other Non-Financial Assets 

Total Non-Financial Assets "B" 

Total Assets "A"+"B" 

Equity and Liabilftes 

- Financial Liabilltes 

- Trade Payable 

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises & small enterprises 

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

& small enterprises 

Debt Securities 

Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

Other Financial Liabilites 

Total Financial Liabllites 

- Non-Flananclal Llablltles 

Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Provisions 

Other Non-Financial Liabilites 

Total Non-Financial Liabllites 

Total Liabllllites 

E.9.J!.jty 

- Equity Share Capital 

- Other Equity 

Total Equity & Llabllltes 

Significant accounting policies 

"A" 

"B" 

I -"A" + "B" 

"I" +"II" 

Ill 

Note 
No. 

3 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17(a) 

17(b) 

1&2 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per Report of Even Date Attached 

For Jayesh Dad la & Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg.No.: 121142W/W100122 

Partner 

Mem. No.: 120073 

UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 

Mumbai, 30.05.2023 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

802.46 

362.18 

3,062.88 

0.28 

250.54 

4,478.34 

4.58 

133.11 

54.64 

6.56 

198.90 

4,677.24 

980.12 

200.31 

31 .78 

27.46 

1,239.66 

117.79 

44.22 

162.01 

1,401.67 

1,850.00 

1,425.57 

3,275.57 

4,677.24 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

1,065.39 

460.38 

2,138.06 

1.38 

310.47 

3,975.67 

8.81 

192.71 

73.90 

9.21 

284.62 

4,260.30 

605.94 

197.56 

58.15 

29.70 

891.35 

108.18 

9.11 

117.29 

1,008.64 

1,850.00 

1,401.66 

3,251.66 

4,260.30 

For and on behalf of the Board 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Statement of Profit & Loss 

for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

Particulars 

Revenue 

Revenue From Operations 

- Fee & Brokerage Income 

- Income/ (Loss) from Arbitrage Transaction I Stock in Trade 

- Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 

Total Revenue from Operations 

Other Income 

Expenses 

- Finance Cost 

- Employee Benefit Expenses 

- Depreciation and Amortisation expenses 

- Other Expenses 

Profit before Tax 

Tax Expense 

- Current Tax 

- Short /(Excess) Provision of Tax 

- Deferred Tax 

Profit After Tax 

Other Comprehensive income, net of tax 

- Item that will not be reclasssified to the statement of 

Profit & Loss 

- Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligation 

Total Income 

Total Expenses 

"A" 

- Income tax relating to items that will not be classified to 

Profit & Loss 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Earning Per Equity Share 

- Basic & Diluted 

Significant accounting policies 

"B" 

"A"+"B" 

Note 
No. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 & 2 

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per Report of Even Date Attached 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

394.52 

89.52 

(1.09) 

482.94 

19.68 

502.62 

10.15 

292.49 

20.47 

97.25 

420.36 

82.26 

0.32 

(0.02) 

(59.60) 

22.97 

1.26 

(0.32) 

0.96 

23.91 

0.12 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

215.61 

224.70 

(135) 

438.95 

24.75 

463.70 

13.74 

258.02 

21 .21 

100.29 

393.26 

70.44 

0.95 

0.05 

(72.52) 

(1.08) 

3.76 

(0.95) 

2.82 

1.73 

(0.01) 

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg.No.: 121142W/W100122 

Partner 

Mom. No.: 120073 

UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 • 

Mumbai, 30.05.2023 

Hemang Gandhi 

Director Director 

DIN: 0000877 
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NOTE-1 

CORPORA TE INFORMATION 

Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited ("the Company") is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Pioneer lnvestcorp Limited having its registered of office at 1216, Maker Chambers V, 121h 

Floor, Nariman Point, Mumbai - 400021 and incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is SEBI Registered Clearing and Trading Member of The 
National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. The Financial statements are approved 
for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 30, 2023. 

NOTE -2 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

2.01 Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for 
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, and on the basis of 
accounting principle of a going concern in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an 
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

The financial statements have been presented in accordance with schedule Ill-Division 
Ill General Instructions for Preparation of financial statements of a Non-Banking 
Financial Company (NBFC) that is required to comply with Ind AS. 

2.02 Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of Company are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional 
currency). Indian rupee is the functional currency of the Company. 

2.03 Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity of Ind AS requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent 
assets and contingent liabilities at the date of financial statements; income and 
expenses during the year. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in future 
periods which are affected. 



Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and 
assumption having the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements are: 
- Valuation of financial instruments 
- Measurement of defined employee benefit obligation 
- Useful life of property, plant and equipment 
- Useful life of investment property 
- Provisions 

2.04 Fair value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair 
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either: 
In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 
participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non financial asset takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 

. . 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of 
relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities 
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the 
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 



The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring 
fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets 
measured at fair value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for 
distribution in discontinued operations. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of 
assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the 
Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management varies the major 
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 
computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The Management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability 
with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of 
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or 
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

2.05 Revenue recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or 
services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with Customers" provides a control-based revenue 
recognition model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for 
revenue recognition. 
A) Identify the contract(s) with a customer; 
B) Identify the performance obligations; 
C) Determine the transaction price; 
D) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations; 
E) Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation. 

Revenue from operations 
Sale of Services 
Merchant banking fees 

Revenue from merchant banking fees includes arranger fees, advisory fees, lead 
manager fees are recognized when the Company satisfies performance obligation. Lead 
manager fees are recognized over a point of time. The Company measures its progress 
towards satisfaction of performance obligation based on output method i.e. milestone 
basis. Revenue from arranger services and advisory services are recognized point in 
time. 

Brokerage 

Revenue from brokerage is recognized point in time. 



Interest Income 

Under Ind AS 109, Interest income is recognized by applying the Effective Interest Rate 
(EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets 
and financial assets classified as measured at fair value through Profit and loss 
(FVTPL). 

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed 
a) As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset. 

b) By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instruments in estimating 
the cash flows 

c) Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral 
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premium or 
discounts. 

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognized in 
interest income with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets. 

Net gain on Fair value changes 

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value 
through the profit or loss held by Company on the balance sheet date is recognized as 
an unrealized gain / loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is 
recognized in "Net gains on fair value changes" under revenue from operations and if 
there is a net loss the same is disclosed under "Expenses" in the statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Similarly, any realized gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL 
and debt instruments measured at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income 
("FVTOCI") is recognized in net gain\loss on fair value changes. 
However, net gain / loss on derecognition of financial instruments classified as amortized 
is presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognized 
a) When the right to receive the payment is established. 
b) it is probable that the economic bene□ts associated with the dividend will flow to 

the entity and 
c) the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably 

2.06 Taxes 

The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Tax is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to items 
recognized in the other comprehensive income or equity. In which case, the tax is also 
recognized in other comprehensive income or equity. 



Current tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date. 

Current income taxes are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax 
relates to items recognized outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates position taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subjected to 
interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in 
the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed 
at the end of each reporting period. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

2.07 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of recoverable taxes, trade 
discount and rebates less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such 
cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly ·attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign 
exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable 
to the assets. 

Subsequent Cost 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is calculated as per the estimated useful life of assets prescribed by the 
Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013. 



Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lease period. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate. 

Asset Useful life in Years 
Com uters 3 ears 

Derecognition 

An item of property plant & equipment and any significant part initially recognized is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its 
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the 
income statement when the asset is derecognized. 

Upon first time adoption of IND-AS, the Company has elected to measure all its 
property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying amount at its deemed cost 
on the date of transition to IND-AS i.e. April 01, 2018. • • • 

2.08 Intangible assets 

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less 
accumulated amortization and impairment loss, if any. 

The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and net charges on 
foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations 
attributable to the intangible assets. 

The Company has elected to continue with the previous GAAP carrying amount of all 
intangible assets as deemed cost at the date of transition i.e. April 01, 2018 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic 
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, 
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, are recognized in 
profit or loss as incurred. 

Derecognition 

An item of intangible asset and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the income 
statement when the asset is derecognized. 

Intangible assets comprising of Software are amortized on a straight line basis over its 
estimated useful life or maximum 3 years, whichever is shorter. 



2.09 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for it? intended use 
or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also 
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing 
costs. 

2.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects 
some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, 
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement 
is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of 
profit and loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognized as a finance cost. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is 
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to 
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there 
is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 
contingent liability is not recognized in books of account but its existence is disclosed in 
financial statements. 

A contingent assets, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, an entity shall 
disclose a brief description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the 
reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their financial effect, measured 
using the principles set out for provisions in Ind AS 37. 

2.11 Impairment of assets 

a) Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) 
model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. 
Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The Company applies a simplified 
approach in calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. 
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead 
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The 



Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit 
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and 
the economic environment. 

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount 
equal to the 12 months ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime 
ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust 
the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be 
recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of profit 
or loss. 

b) Non-financial assets 

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication 
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual 
impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is 
determined for an individual asset. unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. 

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in 
the Statement of Pro□t and Loss is measured by the amount· by which the 
carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the 
asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there 
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. 

The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, 
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

2.12 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and 
a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial assets 

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes c;i party to ~he contractual 
provisions of the instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair 
value, in case of Financial assets which are recognized at fair value through profit and 
loss (FVTPL), its transaction cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In 
other cases, the transaction cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial 
asset. 

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at 



Amortized cost: 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate ("EIR") method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss 
arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL): 

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI , is classified as 
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value, 
except interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as "Net gain on fair value 
changes " in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by 
both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and 
impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from 
the equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the 
period, the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

Trade Receivables and Loans: 

Trade receivables are .initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are 
held at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected 
credit losses. The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through 
the expected life of financial instrument. 

Debt Instruments: 

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") or fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL") till 
derecognition on the basis of (i) the entity's business model for managing the financial 
assets and (ii) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. 

a) Measured at amortized cost: 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold 
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest rate ("EIR") method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR 
and loss arising from impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

~ 



b) Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: 

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income measured using the EIR method and 
impairment losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On 
derecognition, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in .OCI. is reclassified 
from the equity to "other income" in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Measured at fair value through profit or loss: 

A financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVTOCI, is classified as 
FVTPL. Such financial assets are measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value, except interest income and dividend income if any, recognized as "Net gain on 
fair value changes " in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income /dividend 
income on financial assets measured at FVTPL is recognized separately from "net 
gain on fair value changes" in the statement of profit and loss. 

Equity Instruments: 

All investments in equity instruments other than investments in subsidiary companies 
classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair value, the Company may, 
on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at FVTOCI or FVTPL. 

The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Fair value 
changes on an equity instrument is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVTOCI. Fair value 
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVTOCI are 
recognized in OCI. Amounts recognized in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments 
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Derecognition 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the 
cash flows from the asset. 

Financial Liabilities: 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 
recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair 
value and in the case of borrowings trade payables and other financial liabilities, net of 



directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include 
borrowings, trade payables, deposits and other financial liabilities. 

Subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. 
Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value 
with all changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

(a) Borrowings: 

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. 
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in 
the Statement of Proot and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the EIR 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as 
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down 
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the 
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity 
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates. 

(b) Trade and Other Payables: 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company 
prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. They are recognized initially at 
their fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method 

(c) Deposits: 

They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method 

(d) Financial guarantee contracts: 

The Company on case to case basis elects to account for financial guarantee 
contracts as a financial instruments or insurance contracts, as specified in Ind AS 
109 on financial instruments or Ind AS 104 on Insurance contracts. The Company 
has regarded its financial guarantee contracts as insurance contracts. At the end of 
each reporting period the Company performs liability liquidity test ( i.e. it assesses 
the likelihood of a payout based on current undiscounted estimates of future cash 
flows ), and any deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified• in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires. 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 



another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle 
the liabilities simultaneously. 

2.13 Segment Reporting: 

Based on "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 -Operating Segments, the 
Chief Operating Decision Maker evaluates the Company's performance and allocates 
the resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business 
segments. 

Segment Policies: 

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting 
policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company 
as a whole. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment on an appropriate 
basis. 

Segment information: 

Companies whole business is being considered as one segment. 

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and short-term deposits which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part 
of the Company's cash management. 

2.15 Retirement benefits 

i. Defined contribution plans (Provident fund) 

In accordance with Indian Law, eligible employees receive benefits from 
.Provident Fund and Labour welfare fund which is defined contribution plan. In 
case of Provident fund, both the employee and employer make monthly 
contributions to the plan, which is administrated by the ·Government authorities, 
each equal to the specific percentage of employee's basic salary. The Company 
has no further obligation under the plan beyond its monthly contributions. 



Obligation for contributions to the plan is recognized as an employee benefit 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. 

ii. Defined benefit plans (Gratuity) 

In accordance with applicable Indian Law, the Company provides for gratuity, a 
defined benefit retirement plan (the Gratuity Plan) covering eligible employees. 
The Gratuity Plan provides a lumsump payment to vested employees, at 
retirement or termination of employment, and amount based on respective last 
drawn salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Company's 
net obligation in respect of the Gratuity Plan is calculated by estimating the 
amount of future benefits that the employees have earned in return of their 
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its 
present value. Any unrecognized past service cost and the fair value of plan 
assets are deducted. The discount rate is yield at reporting date on risk free 
government bonds that have maturity dates approximating· the· terms of the 
Company's obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a 
benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any 
unrecognized past service cost and the present value of the economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reduction in future 
contribution to the plan. 

The Company recognizes all re-measurements of net defined benefit 
liability/asset directly in other comprehensive income and presented within 
equity. 

iii. Short term benefits 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis 
.and are expensed as a related service provided. A liability is recognized for the 
amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing plans 
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation .to pay this amount 
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably. 

iv. Compensated absences 

2.16 Lease 

The employees of the Company are entitled to leave as per the leave policy of 
the Company. The liability in respect of unutilized leave balances is provided at 
the end of year and charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Company as a Leasee 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the 
requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The 
Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated 
renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as 
the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to 



extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and 
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain 
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to 
exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it 
considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the 
Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to 
terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non­
cancellable period of a lease. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental 
borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with 
similar characteristics. 

Right of use assets 

The Company as a lessee The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of 
leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a 
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange 
for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of 
an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of 
an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from 
use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to 
direct the use of the asset. 

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset 
(''ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a 
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases), 
variable lease and low value leases. For these short-term, variable lease and low value 
leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before 
the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when 
it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the 
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. 
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line 
basis over the shorter of the lease term or useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use 
assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sale and the 
value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. 



The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present valye of the future 
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in 
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the 
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its 
assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option. 

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and 
lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows. 

2.17 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable 
to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such 
as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed 
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity 
shares. 

2.18 Recent accounting developments 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the 
existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable to 
the Company from 1 April 2022 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rs. RS. 

Note No.: 3 

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalants 

- Cash on Hand 8.00 4.98 

- Balance with Banks 794.46 1,060.41 

802.46 1,065.39 

(b) Bank Blances other than Cash & Cash Equivalants 

- Fixed Deposits with Banks* 362.18 460.38 

362.18 460.38 

• Held as Margin Money against Bank Guarantees with Excahnges 

Note No.: 4 

Trade Receivables 

- Considered Good, Unsecured 3,062.88 2,138.06 

3,062.88 2,138.06 

(Refer Note No.:4(a) 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2023 

Note No.: 4(a} 

Trade Receivables (Rs. In lakhs} 

As on 31.03.2023 

Sundry Debtors 
Less than 6 6 months to 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
months vear 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

- Considered Good 2,982.59 1.04 4.15 3.14 71.96 3,062.88 

- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -

Disputed Trade Receivables 

- Considered Good - - - - - -

- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -

Total 2,982.59 1.04 4.15 3.14 71.96 3,062.88 

As on 31.03.2022 

Sundry Debtors 
Less than 6 6 months to 1 

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
months vear 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

- Considered Good 2,060.39 0.66 4.46 1.79 70.75 2,138.06 

- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -
•· 

Disputed Trade Receivables 

- Considered Good - - - - - -

- Considered Doubtful - - - - - -

Total 2,060.39 0.66 4.46 1.79 70.75 2,138.06 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Note No.: 5 

Investments 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
ISIN Particulars 

Qty Rs. Qty Rs. 

At Fair value through Profit & Loss 

In Equity Shares - Quoted 

INE611B01022 Divine Multimedia (India) Ltd 1,76,602 - 1,76,602 0.71 

INE546Y01022 Praxis Home Retail Ltd 95 0.02 95 0.05 

INE27 4G01010 lndiabulls Ventures Ltd 1,000 0.27 1,000 0.62 

0.28 1.38 

Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments: Rs.54.41 lakhs (P. Y.:Rs.54,41 lakhs) 

Market Value of Quoted Investments: Rs.0.28 lakhs (P. Y.: Rs.1.38 lakhs) 

I I 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rs. RS. 

Note No.: 6 

Other Financial Assets 

- Security Deposits 214.56 269.56 

- Loans & Advances 

- to Staff 22.38 24.77 

- Accrued Interest 13.60 16.14 

250.54 310.47 

Note No.: 7 

Current Tax Assets 

Advance Tax (Net) 4.58 8.81 

4.58 8.81 

Note No.: 8 

Deferred Tax (Assets) 

- On Account of Depreciation Diff 2.92 0.93 

- On Account of 438 disallowances 29.65 27.23 

- On Account of 8/f Losses 125.64 190.33 

- On Fair value impact of Financial Liablity (25.09) (25.78) 

133.11 192.71 



Infinity.Com Flnanclal Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

NoteNo.:9 

Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangibles 

Partlcular11 Computers 
Telephone Furniture & Office Vehicles 

Right to use 
Total 

Svstem Fixtures EnuJnments Assets 

Gross Block (Deemed cost - refer note below) 

As at 1st April, 2021 8.01 2.24 175.79 186.04 

-AddiUon . 
- Disposal . . 

As at 31st March, 2022 8.01 2.24 175.79 . 186.04 

As at 1st April, 2022 8.01 2.24 175.79 . 186.04 

-AddiUon 1.22 . 1.22 

- Disposal . . 

As at 31st March, 2023 9.22 2.24 . 175.79 . 187.25 

Accumlated Depreciation 

As at 1st April, 2021 3.15 0.21 87.57 90.93 

-AddiUon 2.49 0.43 18.29 21.21 

-Disposal . . . 

As at 31st March, 2022 5.64 0.63 105.86 . 112.14 

-AddiUon 1.75 0.43 . 18.29 20.47 

-Disposal . 
As at 31st March, 2023 7.39 1.06 . . 124.16 132.61 

Net Block 

As at 31st March, 2022 2.36 1.61 69.93 73.90 

As at 31st March, 2023 1.83 1.18 51.63 54.64 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
31 .03.2023 31.03.2022 

.Rs. RS. 

Note No.: 10 

Other Non-Financial Assets 

- Balance with Govt. / Statutory Authorities 0.20 1.87 

- Prepaid Expenses 6.36 7.35 

6.56 9.21 

Note No.: 11 

Payables 

- Trade Payable 

- Total outstanding dues of micro & small enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro & small enterprises 980.12 605.94 

980.12 605.94 

(Refer Note No.:11(a) 

Note No. : 12 

Debt Securities 

At Amortised Cost 

- 6% Non-cumulative Non-participating Redeemable Preference 200.31 197.56 

200.31 197.56 

Note No. : 13 

Borrowing other than Debt Securities 

At Amortised Cost 

-Term Loans 

- From Bank 31 .78 56.41 

- Demand Loans 

- From Others - 1.74 

31.78 58.15 

Secured Against 

- Hypothecation of Motor Cars 

Note No.: 14 

Other Financial Liabilites 

- For Expenses 27.46 29.70 

27.46 29.70 

Note No.: 15 

Provisions 

- Provision for Employees Benefit 117.79 108.18 

117.79 108.18 

Note No.: 16 

Other Non-Financial Liabilites 

- For Taxes & Duties - 44.22 9.11 
\l~tJ',ICIAl 

<,: ,...-------~ 44.22 9.11 
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Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2022 

Note No.: 11(a) 

Trade Payable (Rs. In Lakhs) 

As on 31.03.2023 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

MSME - - - - -

Others 831 .89 0.01 0.01 148.20 980.12 

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -

Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 831.89 0.01 0.01 148.20 980.1f 

As on 31 .03.2022 

Sundry Debtors Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

MSME - - - - -

Others 457.29 0.03 0.02 148.61 605.94 

Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -

Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -
Total 457.29 0.03 0.02 148.61 605.94 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 17 

Share Capital (Rs.in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

No of Shares Rs. No of Shares Rs. 

(a) Share Capital 

• Authorised: 

Equtly 

• Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,90,00,000.00 1,900.00 1,90,00,000.00 1,900.00 

Preference 

• 0% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 6,00,000.00 600.00 6,00,000.00 600.00 

• 6% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 3,00,000.00 300.00 3,00,000.00 300.00 

2,800.00 2,800.00 

- Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Shares 

Equtly 

• Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,85,00,000.00 1,850.00 1,85,00,000.00 1,850.00 

1,850.00 1,850.00 

• Rights, preferences and restlrctlons attached to Equity Shares 

Equity Shares 

• The Company has only one class of issued equity shares having a par value of Rs.1 o per share 

• Each Holder of Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. 

• The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees 

- In the event of Liquidation of the Company, the holders of Equity Shares will be entitled to receive remianing assets of the Company, after distribution of all 

preferential amounts 

• The Distribution will be in the propration to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders 

• Shareholders holding more than 5% Equity Shares In the Company 

As at 31 .03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 
Name of the Shareholder Percentage of Percentage of No of Shares 

shareholdinQ 
No of Shares 

shareholdinn 
Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 

• Equtiy 

• Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 1,85,00,000.00 1.00 1,85,00,000.00 1.00 

•· 

• Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: 

Name of the Shareholder 
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

No of Shares No of Shares 

Shares at the beginning of the year 1,85,00,000.00 1,85,00,000.00 

Add: Shares issued during the year . . 
Shares at the end of the year 1,85,00,000.00 1,85,00,000.00 

• Shares held by Promoters at the end of the year 

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Name of the Promoter Pioneer lnvestcorp Limited 

No. of Shares 1,85,00,000.00 1,85,00,000.00 

% of Shares 1.00 1.00 

% Change during the year . . 

-,r, • 
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Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 17 (cont'd) 

(b) Other Equity (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
- Capital Redemption Reserve 

At the Beginning of the year ·300.00 300.00 

Add: Additions during the year 

Less: Redemption during the year - -
At the Close of the year 300.00 300.00 

- Securities Premium 

At the Beginning of the year 1,000.00 1,000.00 

Add: Additions during the year - -
At the Close of the year 1,000.00 1,000.00 

- General Reserve 

At the Beginning of the year - -
Less: Transferred duing the year - -
At the Close of the year - -

- Surplus / (Deficit) in Profit & Loss Ale 

Opening Balance 75.29 76.38 

Add: Transfer from General Reserve - -
Less: Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve 

Add: Profit I (Loss) for the Year 22.97 (1 .08) 

At the Close of the year 98.26 75.29 

- Other Comprehnesive Income 

Opening Balance 26.36 23.55 

Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.95 2.82 

27.31 26.36 
•· 

1,425.57 1,401.66 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 

I - Revenue from Operations 

Note No.: 18 

A) Fee & Brokerage Income: 

- Brokerage Income (Net) 

- Arranger & Advisory Fees 

- Depository Services 

Note No.: 19 

8) Income/ (Loss) from Arbitrage Transaction/ Stock in Trade 

- Government Securities & Bonds 

- Derivates - Shares & Currency 

Note No.: 20 

C) Net Gain on Fair Value Changes 

Net Gain I {Loss) on Financial Instruments at Fair Value through 

Profit or Loss 

- Realised Gain 

- Unrealised Gain I (Loss) 

"A" 

"B" 

"C" 

"A"+ "B" + "C" 

II - Other Income 

Note No.: 21 

(A) Interest 

Interest - Fixed Deposits with Banks 

Interest - Income Tax Refund 

(B) Miscellenous Income 

"A" 

"C" 

"A" + "B" + "C" 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

196.89 

194.26 

3.37 

394.52 

89.52 

89.52 

(1.09) 

(1.09) 

482.94 

19.39 

0.28 

19.67 

0.00 

0.00 

19.68 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

208.12 

3.38 

4.11 

215.61 

224.70 

224.70 

(1.35) 

(1.35) 

438.95 

.. 

24.15 

0.58 

24.73 

0.02 

0.02 

24.75 
l========l=======~ 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Particulars 

Note No.: 22 

• Finance Cost 

On Instruments measured at amortized cost 

• Interest on borrowings 

• Interest on Debt Securities 

- Other Borrowing Cost 

Note No.: 23 

- Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries & Bonus 

Contribution to Provident Fund & ESIC 

Gratuity 

Staff Welfare 

Note No.: 24 

• Other Expenses 

Business Promotion Expenses 

CDSL / NSDL Charges 

Computer Maintenance Charges 

Demat Charges 

Donation 

Electricity Charges 

Insurance Charges 

Motor Car Expenses 

Office Expenses 

Postage & Telegram 

Printing & Stationery Expenses 

Professional Fees 

Profession Tax - Company 

Rent & Service Charges 

Repairs & Maintenance 

ROC Fees 

SEBI Fees 

Stamp Charges 

STP / KRA & Clearing Charges 

Stock Exchange Misc Charges 

Subscription Charges 

Telephone, Internet & Leased Line Charges 

Transaction Charges 

Travelling & Conveyance 

MisdealNc 

Stamp & Service Tax & Other Charges on 

- Debt Transactions 

Sundry Debit / Credit Balances Written off 

Rounding Off 

GST 

Auditors Remuneration 

- To Statutory Auditor for 

-Audit Fees 

- Tax Audit Fees 

- Tax Matters 

- GST (on above) 
-

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

3.66 

2.74 

3.75 

10.15 

267.34 

7.36 

10.88 

6.91 

292.49 

13.72 

2.28 

12.30 

0.68 

0.25 

0.05 

2.78 

9.05 

5.68 

1.75 

0.42 

15.91 

0.03 

3.89 

-
0.11 

3.33 

0.22 

0.09 

5.48 

2.52 

9.1 9 

0.31 

3.62 

0.04 

0.00 

0.06 

0.00 

(0.03) 

2.50 

0.50 

0.54 

97.25 

(Rs. -,n Lakhs) 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

5.57 

2.48 

5.69 

13.74 

235.90 

7.32 

10.70 

4.09 

258.02 

13.28 

1.00 

13.59 

0.67 

-

0.04 

2.18 

7.30 

7.09 

1.24 

1.25 

19.96 

0.03 

3.54 

1.14 

0.01 

1.36 

0.88 

0.18 

1.59 

2.93 

8.88 

(0.57) 

9. 16 

(0.04) 

0.00 

0.06 

0.00 

0.00 

2.50 

0.50 

0.54 

100.29 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 25 

Particulars 31 .03.2023 31 .03.2022 

Earnings Per Share 

- Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit & Loss 22.97 (1.08) 

- Weighted Average No of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 

for Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (No.) 185 185 

- Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.12 (0.01) 

- Nominal Value of Equity Shares 10.00 10.00 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 26 

Contigent Liabilites (Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Particulars 

Rs. Rs. 

- Bank Guarantees issued by bank 340.00 340.00 

340.00 340.00 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 27 

Disaggregated Revenue Information 

Particualrs 

Type of Goods or Service 

- Arranger & Advisory Fee 

- Depository Services 

- Brokerage 

Total Revenue from contracts with the customers 

Geographical Markets 

- India 

- Outside India 

Total Revenue from contracts with the customers 

Relation with customer 

- Non Related Parties 

- Related Parties 

Total Revenue from contracts with the customers 

Timing of Revenue Recognition 

- Service transferred over a period of time 

- Service transferred over a point of time 

Total Revenue. from contracts with the customers 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

194.26 

3.37 

196.89 

394.52 

394.52 

394.52 

0.00 

0.76 

0.77 

394.52 

394.52 

Geographical Revenue is allocated based on the location of the services 

I 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31 .03.2022 

Rs. 

3.38 

4.11 

208.1 2 

215.61 

215.61 

215.61 

0.00 

1.72 

1.72 

1.98 

213.63 

215.61 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financlal Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 28 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Valuation Result as at 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 

I Changes In present value of obligations 

PVO at beginning of period 109.75 108.18 

Interest Cost 6.67 7.41 

Current Service Cost 4.04 3.47 

Past Service Cost (non vested bebefits) - -
Past Service Cost (vested bebefits) - -
Benefits Paid (8.51) -
Contributions by plan participants - -
Business Combinations - -
Curtailments - -
Settlements - -
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation (3.76) (1.26) 

PVO at end of period 108.18 117.79 

II Interest Expenses 

Interest Cost 6.67 7.41 

Ill Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning - -
Interest Income - -

IV Net Liability 

PVO at beginning of period 109.75 108.18 

Fair Value of the Asssts at beginning report - -
Net Liability 109.75 108.18 

V Net Interest 

Interest Expenes 6.67 7.41 

Interest Income - -
Net Interest 6.67 7.41 

VI Actual return on plan assets - -
Less Interest income included above - -
Return on plan assets excluding interest income - -

VII Actuarial (Galn)/loss on obligation 

Due to Demographic Assumption• - -
Due to Financial Assumption (3.70) (2.95) 

Due to Experience (0.07) 1.69 

Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (3)6) (1.26) , 

• This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financial assumption when a 

limit is applied on the benefit, the effect will be shown as an experience 

VIII Fair Value of Plan Assets 

Opening Fair Value of Plan Asset - -
Adjustment to opening Fair Value of Plan Asset - -
Return on Plan Assets excl. interest income - -
lnteret Income - -
Contributions by Employer 8.51 -
Contributions by Employee - -
Benefits paid (8.51) -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end - -

IX Past Service Cost Required 

Past Service Cost (non vested benefits) - -
Past Service Cost (vested benefits) - -
Average remaining future service till vesting of the benefit - -
Recognised Past Service Cost - non vested benefits - - -
Recognised Past Service Cost - vested benefits 

~
"; ~CIA[~ ' -

Unrecoginsed Past Service Cost - non vested benefits 
t----" 

~ '\~ - -
u_( Ml IMRAI/,~ 

\U i:::,\ ~ ~\. " 
->"~,'-*-:' 0 \. 

--



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 28 (cont'd) (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Valuation Result as at 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 

X Amounts to be recoginzed in the balance sheet and statement of proift & loss 

PVO at the end of period 108.18 117.79 

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of period . . 

Funded Status (108.18) (117.79) 

Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the balance sheet (108.18) (117.79) 

XI Expenses recognized in the statement of P&L Ale 

Current Service Cost 4.04 3.47 

Net Interest 6.67 7.41 

Past Service Cost (non vested benefits) . . 

Past Service Cost (vested benefits) .. . 

Curtailment Effect . . 

Settlement Effect . . 
Unrecognised Past Service Cost - non vested benefits . . 

Acuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period . . 

Expense recognized in the statement of P&L A/c 10.70 10.88 

XII Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period (3.76) (1.26) 

Asset limit effect . . 

Return on Plan Assets excluding net interest . . 

Unrecognized Actuarial (Gain)/Loss from previous period . . 

Total Actuaria (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI) (3.76) (1.26) 

XIII Movements in the liability recognized in Balance Sheet 

Opening Net Liability 109.75 108.18 
' Adjustment to opening balance . . 

Expenses as above 10.70 10.88 

Contribution paid (8.51) . 

Other Comprenehisive Income (OCI) (3.76) (1.26) 

Closing Net Liability 108.18 117.79 

XIV Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 

Current Liability 10.37 11.26 

Non Current Liability 97.81 106.54 

xv Projected Service Cost 31 Mar 2022 3.47 3.70 

XVI Asset Information 

Not applicable as the plan is unfunded 

XVII Assumptions at at ~1.03.~022 3.1.03.2023, 

Mortality ALM (2012-14) Ult. ALM (2012-14) Ult. 

Interest I Discount Rate 6.85% 7.29% 

Rate of increase in compensation 7.00% 7.00% 

Annual increase in healthcare costs 

Future changes in maximum state healthcare benefits 

Expected average remaining service 8.69 8.23 -
Retirement Age 

\~'2.~~ 
65 years 65 years 

Employee Attrition Rate ~I" '\'c, Age: O to 65 : 5% Age: O to 65 : 5% 

I uf \,:> 
.,_; ( MUMBi1 l;:1 

f\t -i, ,y1'/'-..-- . 



Infinity.Com Fln•ncl•I Securltla Umlted 

Not .. to th• Fln•ncl•I s,.,,m,nts for the yNr ended 31st M•rch, 2023 (Cont'd} 

Noto No.: 28 /cont'd) (Rs, In Lt~h•J 

XVIII SOnolUvlty Analysis 

OR: Ol1count Rate ER: Salary Eacalallon Rate 

PVODR+1% PVO-DR+1% PVOER+1% PVO-ER + 1% 

PVO 111.60 12U3 122.25 113.22 

XIX Expected Payout 

Year Expected Outgo Expected outgo Expected outgo Expected outgo Expecled outgo Expected outgo ., ... c::a ... ond Third Fourth Firth Sixth 
Ptyoutl 11.26 11.31 35.82 8.73 4.93 44.84 

xx AoHI Lltblllty Compar11on1 

Year 31.03.2019 31.03.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 

PVO at the end of period 109.88 114.60 109.75 109.75 117.79 

Plan Allell 

Surplull(oerictt) (105.90) (109.88) (109.75) (109.75) (117.79) 

Experience adjustments on plan assets 

Weighted average ramlaning duration of Defined Benefit Obligation 5.88 

XXI Narration, 

1 Anlly1l1 of Denned e.nefil Obllgatlon 

The number of members under the scheme have remained the same 

The total salary has Increased by 5.13% during the accounting period 

The resultant liability at the end of the period over the beginning of the perk>d has decreased by 8.8~ 

2 E>lpected rate of return bul1 

Schema Is not funded EORA is not applicable 

3 0Hcf1ptlon of Plan A1Ht1 and Relmbursment condition, 

Ncl Applicable 

4 Investment I Interest Risk 

Since the scheme 11 unfunded the Company Is not exposed ot investment I market rbk 

~ Lona-vlly Rlok 

The Company Is not expected to risk or the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the employee seperatlng from the employer for any reason 

6 Rllk of Sl'-ry lncrNH 

The Company Is exposed to higher Uabllity If the future salaries rise more than assumption of salary 

7 Discount rate 

The discount rate has Increased from 6.85% to 7.~ and hence there Is an increase In liablity leading lo acturarial loss due to change In discount rate 

•· 

Noto Ho.: 29 

SOgement Reporting 

In accordance with lndlan AccOunllng Standard (INn A~) 1M. 1he Company operatea In 3 clnglo oporoUng oy3tom I.e. 

"Providing Financial servcies· within India. 

Accordingty no aeparate disclosure Is required. 

The Board of Olrectora or the Company are collectively the Chief Operating Qeclslon Makers (CODMs) of the Company. 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 30 

As per the Indian Accounting Standard 24 Related Party disclosures, the disclosures as defined 

as given below: 

Related Party Relationships: 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 

- Fellow Subsidiaries 

- Pioneer Commodity Intermediaries Pvt Ltd 

- Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt ltd 

- Pioneer Investment Advisory Services Pvt Ltd 

- Pioneer Money Management ltd 

- Pioneer Wealth Management Services Pvt Ltd 

- Key Managerial Personnel 

- Mr. Gaurang Gandhi - Director 

- Mr. Hemang Gandhi - Director 

- Mr. Ketan Gandhi - Director 

- Mr. Sashi Shatter - Company Secretary 

- Enterprises controlled by Key Management personnel 

- Associated Capital Market Management Pvt ltd 

- Devraj Properties Pvt ltd 

- Dharamkot Investment & Trading Co 

- Festive Multitrade Pvt ltd 

- Futuristic lmpex Pvt ltd 

- L Gordhandas & CO Clearing Agent Pvt ltd 

- PINC Tech Solutions Pvt ltd 

- Pioneer Insurance & Reinsurance Brokers Pvt ltd 

- Sharppoint Motors & Automobiles Pvt Ltd 

- Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt ltd 

- Symbyoys lntegarated Solutions Pvt ltd 

- Sargam Multitrade Pvt ltd 

- Trident Tradevest Pvt ltd 

- Associated Instruments & Services 

Notes: 

- The Related Party relationships have been determined on the basis of the requirements of the 

Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) - 24 'Related Party Disclosures' and the same have been 

relied upon by the Auditors 

- The relationships as mentioned above pertain to those related parties with whom transactions 

have taken place during the year, except where control exist, in which case the relationships 

have been mentioned irrespective of transactions with the relative 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 



Infinity. Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

Note No.: 30 (cont'd) 

II Details of Related Party Transactions are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Sr No Particulars 

Rs. Rs. 

A Transactions with Related Parties 

1 - Purchase of Securities I Bonds 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd - -

- Enterprises controlled by Key Management personnel 

- Futristic lmpex Pvt Ltd - 695.06 

- Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd - 601.29 

- Symbyosys Integrated Solutions Pvt Ltd - 760.17 

- Festive Multitrade Pvt Ltd - 1,028.14 

- 3,084.67 

2 - Brokerage Earned 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 0.25 1.21 

- Key Managerial Personnel 

- Gaurang Gandhi 0.40 0.51 

- Hemang Gandhi 0.10 0.00 

- Ketan Gandhi 0.02 -

0.76 1.72 
-

3 - Reimursement of Expenses (Net) 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd - (0.38) 

- (0.38) 

(Bracket indicates credit) 

4 - Interest Paid 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd - 1.94 

- 1.94 

5 - Depository Charges 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 0.22 0.50 

- Fellow Subsidiary 

- Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt Ltd 0.01 0.01 

- Pioneer Wealth Management Services Pvt Ltd 0.01 0.18 

- Enterprises controlled by Key Management personnel 

- Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd 0.01 0.01 

- Festive Multitrade Pvt Ltd 0.01 0.24 

- Key Managerial Personnel 

- Gaurang Gandhi 0.23 0.21 

- Hemang Gandhi 0.00 0.00 

0.50 1.17 

6 - Loan Received 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd - 3,444.75 

- 3,444.75 

7 - Loan Repaid 

- Holding Company 
'--

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd &- CIAi~ - 3,444.75 

rl~/ 
----~c., - 3,444.75 

j of.., l • H>A I l~ 
) ~\. J,___ 1~\ l!J; ~ 

~~-----.-'.'<:>"" 

--



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Note No.: 30 (cont'd) 

II Details of Related Party Transactions are as follows: 

Sr No 

B 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Particulars 

Balances with Related Parties 

- Balance Payable 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 

- Key Managerial Personnel 

- Gaurang Gandhi 

- Balance Receivable 

- Fellow Subsidiary 

- Pioneer Fundinvest Pvt Ltd 

- Pioneer Wealth Management Services Pvt Ltd 

- Enterprises controlled by Key Management personnel 

- Siddhi Portfolio Services Pvt Ltd 

- Festive Multitrade Pvt Ltd 

- Key Managerial Personnel 

- Hemang Gandhi 

- Other Financial Liability - Interest 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 

- Fellow Subsidiary 

- Corporate Guarantee Received 

- Holding Company 

- Pioneer lnvestcorp Ltd 

Corporate Guarantee availed in respect of Working Capital I Bank Guarantees 

_l 

31.03.2023 

Rs. 

10.10 

7.32 

17.42 

0.06 

0.19 

0.09 

0.26 

-
0.60 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

31.03.2022 

Rs. 

3.62 

2.48 

6.10 

0.05 

0.18 
•· 

0.07 

0.24 

0.01 

0.56 

1.94 

1.94 

400.00 

400.00 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 31 

As per Indian Accounting Standard-17 "Leases", the disclosures as defined are given below 

- Where the Company is Lessee: 

The Company has taken premises under operating lease that are renewable on a periodic basis 

at the option of both the Lessor and Lessee. 

The future minimum lease payments as per the Lease Agreement are as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31 .03.2022 

- Not later than one year 3.60 -
- Later than one year and not later than five years 5.40 -
- Later than five years - -



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

NoteNo.: 32 

Financial Instruments 

Financial Risk Management 

The risk management policies of the Company are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect 
changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 
The Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. In performing its 
operating, investing and financing activities, the Company is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk. 

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2023 were as follows: • 

Particulars 

Financials Assets 

- Cash and cash equivalents 

- Bank Balances other than above 

- Receivables 

- Loans 

- Investments 

- Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

- Trade Payables 

- Debt Securities 

- Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

- Other financial liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

At Amortised 
Cost 

802.46 

362.18 

3,062.88 

-
-

250.54 

4,478.06 

980.12 

200.31 

31 .78 

27.46 

1,239.66 

At Fair value 
through profit 

and loss 

-

-

-

-

0.28 

-
0.28 

-

-
-
-

-

At Fair value 
through OCI 

-

-

-
-
-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

The carrying value and fair value of financial instrument by categories as of March 31, 2022 were as follows: 

Particulars 

Financials Assets 

- Cash and cash equivalents 

- Bank Balances other than above 

- Receivables 

- Loans 

- Investments 

- Other financial assets 

Total Financial Assets 

Financial Liabilities 

- Trade Payables 

- Debt Securities 

- Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities) 

- Other financial liabilities 

Total Financial Liabilities 

At Amortised 
Cost 

1,065.39 

460.38 

2,138.06 

-
-

310.47 

3,974.30 

605.94 

197.56 

58.15 

29.70 

891 .35 

At Fair value 
At Fair value 

through profit 
and loss 

through OCI 

- -
- -
- -

- -

1.38 -
- -

1.38 -

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Total Carrying 
Value 

802.46 

362.1 8 

3,062.88 

0.28 

250.54 

4,478.34 

980.12 

200.31 

31.7.8 

27.46 

1,239.66 

Total Carrying 
Value 

1,065.39 

460.38 

2,138.06 

-
1.38 

310.47 

3,975.67 

605.94 

197.56 

58.15 

29.70 

891.35 



In finity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 33 (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Market Risk 
Market risk Is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of 
risk:lnterest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk Include loans and borrowings, 
deposits, Investments and derivative financial Instruments. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on Its obligation by the counterparty resulting in a financial loss. The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is from trade 
receivables amounting to Rs 3062.88 Lakhs and Rs 2138.06 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue 
earned from customers located in India. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit 
worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms In the normal cause of business. 
The Company applies a simplified approach In calculating Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on trade receivables. Therefore, the Company does not track changes In credit risk, but 
Instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Based on the provision matrix, no provision is required to be made at the 
respective reporting date. 
The Company have provided details of revenue from single largest customer, revenue from top 5 customer and ageing of trade receivables below: 

, . 

(a) The following table gives details In respect of revenues generated from top customer and top 5 customers: 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Revenue from top customer 132.00 129.60 

Revenue from top 5 customers 168.23 171 .62 

(b) Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are not due as at the end of reporting year: 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Within credit days . . 

(c) Ageing analysis of the age of trade receivable amounts that are past due as at the end of reporting year but not impaired: 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Trade receivables: 

Less than 90 days 2,975.84 2,059.86 

91 to 180 days 6.75 0.52 

more than 180 dayc 80.29 77.67 

Total 3,062.88 2,138.06 

Balances with Banks and other financial assets: 

The Company holds cash and cash equivalents with bank, which are having highest safety ratings based on ratings published by various credit rating agencies.The Company consid~rs 
that Its cash and cash equivalents have low credit risk based on external credit ratings of the counterparties. 
For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on reasonable and supportive forward looking Information.The Company does not have significant 
credit risk exposure for these items. 

Investments In debt securities measured at amortised cost 

Expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 months ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those 
are measured at lifetime ECL. Since there was no significant increase in credit risk from initial recognilion, the management has applied 12 months ECL. No expected credit loss is 
required to be made based on the Company's management assessment considering the probability of default, loss given default, exposure at default and the discounting rate applied to 
the Individual Investments. 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 34 

Liquidity Risk 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

The Company's principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and the cash now that is generated from operations. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be 
able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses. The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to 
meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors Its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adequate sources of financing 
including debt and overdraft from banks at an optimised cost. The Company's maximum exposure to liquidity risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2022, March 31, 
2021 Is the carrying amounts. The liquidity risk Is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The Company's major financial liabilities Include term loans 
with maturity prole ranging between O to 5 years and short term borrowings are generally payable within one year. The average credit period taken to sellle trade payables Is about 30 
days. The other payables are with short-term durations. The following table analysis undiscounted financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities: 

Particulars On demand 

As at 31 March 2023 

Borrowings -
Debt Securities -
Trade and other payables 980.12 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 980.12 

As at 31 March 2022 

Borrowings 1.74 

Debt Securities -
Trade and other payables 605.94 

Other financial liabilities -
Total 607.69 

Capital Management 

Less than 3 to12 months 
3 months 

6.48 19.02 

- -
- -

24.22 3.24 

30.69 22.26 

5.97 18.66 

-
- -

26.46 3.24 

32.43 21.90 

1 to 5 years 

- 6.28 

6.28 

31.78 

31.78 

>5 years 

200.31 

200.31 

197.56 

197.56 

Total 

31.78 

200.31 

980.12 

27.46 

1,239.66 

58.15 

197.56 

605.94 

29.70 

891.35 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital Includes Issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as going 
concern while maximising the return to 

stakeholders.The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment in light of changes in business condition. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is 
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company's policy Is to keep optimum gearing ratio.The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade 
and other payables, less cash and cash 
equivalents, excluding discontinued operations. 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Borrowings 31.78 58.15 

Trade and other payables 980.12 605.94 

Debt Securities 200.31 197.56 

Other financial liabilities 27.46 29.70 

Less: cash and cash equivalents (802.46) (1,065.39) 

Net debt (A) 437 (174) 

Equity share capital 1,850 1,850 

Other equity 1,426 1,402 

Total membefs capital (BJ 3,276 3,252 

Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 3,713 3,078 

Gearing ratio (%) (NC) 11.78% -5.65% 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that 
define capital structure requirements.Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call borrowings.There have been no breaches in the financial 
covenants of any borrowings in the current period. 
No changes were made In the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the aforesaid financial period. 



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (Cont'd) 

Note No.: 35 

Fair Value Hierarchy (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) 
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
.. 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023 

Particulars 
As At Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using 

31.03.2023 Levell I Level II I Level Ill 

Equity instruments FVTPL 0.28 0.28 T - l -

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
As At Fair value measurement at end of the reporting year using 

31.03.2023 Level I I Level II l Level Ill 

Equity instruments FVTPL 1.38 1.38 I - I -



Infinity.Com Financial Securities Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 (cont'd) 

Note No.: 37 

There was no impairment loss on the Fixed assets on the basis of review carried out by the 
management in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 36 Impairment of 
Assets. 

Note No.: 38 

Balances of certain trade receivables, trade payables are subject to 
confirmation/reconciliation, if any. The management does not expect any material difference 
affecting the financial statements on such reconciliation/adjustments. 

Note No.: 39 

The Company has not received any intimation from 'suppliers' regarding their status under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. 

Note No.: 40 
In the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge adequate provisions 
has been made in the accounts for all known liabilities and the current assets, loans and 
advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of business 

Note No.: 41 

Other Statutory Information: 

a) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceedings have been 
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. 

b) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off 

c) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with 
ROC beyond the statutory period. 

d) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of 
Section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 
2017. 

e) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the 
Intermediary shall: • • • 
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or 

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 



f) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise) that the Company shall: 
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or 

(ii) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

g) The Company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts 
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). 

h) The Company is not covered under Section 135 of the Companies Act t~eref~re disclosure 
for CSR activity is not given. 

i) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during 
the financial year. 

Note No.: 42 
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the 
nearest lakh as per the requirement of Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013, unless 
otherwise stated. 

Note No.: 43 

Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified whether necessary with the current 
year's classification/disclosure. 

Signature to Notes 1 to 43 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 

As per Report of Even Date Attached 

For Jayesh Dadia & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg.No.: 121142W/W100122 

tl 
Nishit Dave 
Partner 
Mem. No.: 120073 
UDIN: 23120073BGWQNE8205 
Mumbai, 30.05.2023 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Hemang Gandhi 
Director 

DIN:000620 ........___.. 0008770 


